






January 23, 2020 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 9

CITY OF ELKO
REDEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
4:00 P.M., P.S.T., THURSDAY, JANUARY 23, 2020

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Jon Karr, Chairman of the City of Elko Redevelopment
Advisory Council (RAC), at 4:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Present: Jeff Dalling
Jon Karr, DBA
Lina Blohm

Excused: Catherine Wines, ACAB
Bill Hance
Corey Rice, Elko County
Katie Neddenriep, ECVA
Sonja Sibert, GBC
Steve Bowers, Elko County School District

City Staff Present: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Michele Rambo, Development Manager
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Lina Blohm wanted to bring up recent readings in the News Paper that the City is actively
pursuing space to expand into. She stated that longevity and long terms sometimes have a
benefit. She mentioned that she was with Dennis Crooks when he was the City Planner and his
vision was to have City Hall downtown in the corridor. The City entity is the one entity that can
build in the corridor area. She stated that she wasn’t going that far to say that should happen, but
she was asking, or bringing it forward, that perhaps there are some spaces in the downtown area
to take a look at. There are a few empty buildings that might suit the purposes. Perhaps, at some
point, it would become an agenda item.

Chairman Jon Karr thought it would be a good idea.



January 23, 2020 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 9

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

October 24, 2019 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

*** A motion was made by Lina Blohm, seconded by Jeff Dalling to approve the minutes as
presented.

*Motion passed unanimously. (3-0)

I. NEW BUSINESS

A. Review, consideration, and possible action regarding the continuation of the
Redevelopment Recognition Program, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

The RAC defined the details of the Recognition Program at their October 25, 2018
meeting. The RDA and RAC had a joint meeting May 21, 2019 to recognize the 2019
recipients of the Recognition Program.  It was never determined if this program would be
an annual or biennial program.

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, explained that when the recognition program was put in
place it was never determined if it would be an annual program. We will need to decide if we
want to keep it going, and if so, how often we want to do it. Ms. Laughlin suggested doing it
every other year. That way there would be more projects to recognize.

Ms. Blohm asked for a recap of the latest recognition program.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, explained that the last time the recognition program
was done the Board selected amongst the group who would be recognized. It was an award in the
shape of a google pin drop, and the RDA gave out the awards. The question is whether that
should be done yearly or less often.

Ms. Blohm wondered how relevant it was, because she missed it.

Mr. Dalling said eleven projects were recognized.

Ms. Blohm asked Mr. Dalling if he felt he was adequately recognized. She asked if they were in
the Newspaper with a photograph.

Mr. Dalling didn’t think that there was any advertising done on it.

Ms. Blohm said she knew about the first one. There was a large gathering and food was served.
The recipients were really recognized.

Chairman Karr asked if they should have a recognition every year, every two years, or three
years, and do a bigger presentation.



January 23, 2020 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 9

Mr. Dalling said the other one they did five years in between and they had enough for eleven
recipients. Mr. Dalling said he would rather do something cool like the first one.

Ms. Blohm recommended they wait five years and give it a little more recognition, or pizazz.

*** A motion was made by Lina Blohm to have the recognition program every five years,
and to bring the Recognition Program back for reconsideration.

*Motion passed unanimously. (3-0)

After the motion, and before the vote, Mr. Wilkinson thought that they could decide on a
frequency. He also thought they needed to bring back the program for reconsideration. He
thought a motion dealing with the frequency would be appropriate.

Ms. Blohm agreed with Mr. Wilkinson, but she thought for the sake of the minutes that she
wanted to know how much money was spent on the last program.

Mr. Wilkinson said $1,000. That was voted on by this board and recommended to the RDA.

Ms. Blohm asked if that was just for the cost of the trophies. (Correct)

There was further discussion regarding how to present the recognition awards.

*Mr. Dalling seconded the motion.

The Board then voted on the motion.

B. Review, consideration and possible action to elect officers. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

RAC Bylaws Article III, Section 1 states: The RAC shall elect a chairperson, a vice-
chairperson, and a secretary from its members in January of each year. There is no
minimum or maximum on the number of times a member may serve in one of the elected
offices.

Mr. Karr asked if Ms. Blohm wanted to wait until they had all members present to have elections
of officers.

Mr. Dalling wanted keep everything the same.

Ms. Blohm agreed.

Mr. Dalling nominated Jon Karr for the Chairman position, Catherine Wines for the Vice-
Chairman Position and Lina Blohm for the Secretary position. A vote was take and passed
unanimously.



January 23, 2020 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 9

II. REPORTS

A. Budget

Ms. Rambo went over the budget report that was included in the packet.

Mr. Dalling asked how much was budgeted for the block ends.

Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer, thought they were in the neighborhood of $450,000 for
that project.

Mr. Wilkinson said that would probably be out of the next year’s budget. It goes back
to when we prioritized, and there were some preliminary estimates. He thought this
project was estimated to cost $450,000. It will be a specific line item on next year’s
budget.

Ms. Blohm asked if they had approved an expenditure for the block ends.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that they approved a project list. At some point the RDA
will have to authorize staff to go to bid, once we get the bids back the RDA would
approve the expenditure.

Ms. Blohm asked what they had going on for Public-Private Partnerships.

Mr. Wilkinson said that there hasn’t been any applications for any Public-Private
Partnerships.

Shelby Archuleta mentioned that there had been a Public-Private Partnership
approved for the Stockmen’s Parking Lot for $99,999.

There was further conversation about Public-Private Partnerships.

Ms. Blohm mentioned that somewhere there should be a reminder that those monies
have been promised.

B. Storefront Improvement Program

Ms. Rambo reported that from the 2017 Grants, there is still $25,000. Staff is waiting
on the proper paper work to be submitted for reimbursement. In the 2018 Grants, The
Commercial Hotel is in progress and The Pat Laughlin Family Trust has completed
their project and submitted for reimbursement. In the 2019 Grants, Capriola’s has
ordered and permitted their sign, and have been 50% paid out. The Catherine Wines
Building has no progress to date. The Jason and Gina Land Building is under



January 23, 2020 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 9

construction. For the 2020 Program Ms. Laughlin is looking at contacting the DBA,
Chamber, and The Newspaper to put out some ads, or mass emails.

Chairman Karr reported that the DBA was going to send out a mass email and an
advertising campaign.

C. Block End Design / Construction Schedule – Bob Thibault

Mr. Thibault reported that he had been working on the Block End design and he
wanted to go over it with everyone. He started with the block ends at 4th Street. There
hasn’t been much change in the general layout since it had been presented last. There
have been some concrete areas have been added to the layout for art installations,
which was approved by the RDA at their last meeting. There are still large shade
trees; four can fit on each side of the road. They will hang over the sidewalk, but not
encroach into the street. There was some discussion on raising the concrete for seats
in the concrete areas. Mr. Thibault said they would meet the intent of the seating with
benches instead of the raised concrete. Staff found a bench that fits the curved shape.

Chairman Karr asked if the RDA approved the seating. (Yes)

Mr. Wilkinson explained that this board voted not to have the art display areas. The
RDA decided that they wanted to have art display areas, and they voted to incorporate
those into the design and to have a raised concrete area for seating. All we are doing
here is presenting, for your information, that we intend to put these benches up rather
than a concrete monolithic pour, which will look like an unfinished half circle. Staff
thought that the benches would last longer than concrete, and even if there isn’t an art
piece there is a place to sit and it looks like that is the intent.

Ms. Blohm thought they were nice. She asked if wood was practical.

Mr. Thibault explained that they are made from a couple different types of materials,
which are weather resistant.

Ms. Blohm thought it was charming. She was glad the RDA voted to have art
exhibits. She asked what the art would be.

Mr. Thibault explained that they have one art piece, which is a giant steel propane
tank in the shape of a sphere that needed to be painted.

Mr. Wilkinson explained he had a recommendation to the RDA to include concrete
areas for art; other staff did also. He felt it was appropriate to do that, rather than have
it later. The RDA considered the merits of the RAC’s recommendation not to include
it. Mr. Wilkinson believed the RDA said to put it in as an ad alternate to the project to
see if we could afford it. Staff thought it was a good idea, rather than plant the area all
in turf and then dig it up later for art. The sphere thing was donated by Chester
Plumbing. They were going to use it in an art expo, paint it, and have it downtown



January 23, 2020 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 9

somewhere. No art has been approved by anyone to go in any of these locations. It is
something that will be figured out at a future date.

Mr. Thibault continued with the block end presentation. He explained that there
would be six-foot wide sidewalks, and 20 feet of landscape area.

Ms. Blohm asked if a lane of parking would be removed to accommodate the 20 feet
of landscape.

Mr. Thibault said they would be losing the parallel parking along 4th Street and the
first row of angled parking in the corridor adjacent to 4th Street. They would be
keeping the existing driveways.

Ms. Blohm asked if the designs of took care of, or remedied, the drainage issue in the
area.

Mr. Thibault said he was designing them so that they drain properly. He asked if there
were existing issues.

Ms. Blohm pointed out the funky corner at 4th Street and Railroad Street. She asked if
Mr. Thibault was designing for that.

Mr. Thibault said he couldn’t. He explained that it was on the other side of the street.

Ms. Blohm said it wasn’t that far away. She asked if they should be considering it,
because hopefully, sooner rather than later, there will be a sidewalk improvement
district.

Mr. Thibault agreed that that should be something that they should be trying to
address. He mentioned that in the past he suggested that they do one block at a time.
In doing that, they would be able to address some of the bigger problems. When you
break it down into lots of small pieces, as we are doing now, it doesn’t work.

Ms. Blohm asked if that was the smart thing to do.

Mr. Wilkinson mentioned that staff recommended that we not do block ends, and do
whole blocks at a time. The RAC had a different recommendation and broke out the
block ends as a project, recommended the prioritization of the entire corridor project
to the RDA. The RDA took the RAC’s recommendation to do those things. We are
now executing on that plan. Centennial Park has been completed and undergrounding
the utilities has been completed, so the next priority on the list that has been approved
by this board is to do the Block Ends.

Ms. Blohm said at the same time that they were talking about block ends; they were
also talking about a sidewalk improvement district.



January 23, 2020 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 9

Mr. Thibault and Mr. Wilkinson pointed that out as the next project.

Mr. Karr pointed out that the sidewalk along Railroad, between Fourth and Fifth
Streets, was unique. All the other ones would just be fixing the sidewalk. This corner
is a completely different thing.

Ms. Blohm thought that was why they needed to look at whole picture. She said she
needed the engineer’s opinion on what he thought should happen right there.

Mr. Thibault explained that if they looked at the finished floor of those buildings
along the north side of Railroad Street. They should raise the street to match closer to
those floors, so that there aren’t steps from the sidewalk down to the street.

Ms. Blohm asked if Mr. Thibault would raise an entire street to make one corner
adjustment.

Mr. Thibault said that was one option. That is something that requires you to do the
whole big picture at once. When we get to rehabbing that sidewalk, we will probably
end up with a series of ramps, something like what is at Western Folklife Center.

Ms. Blohm said she wanted to see the whole picture, and that she needed to know that
they thought this through and that they have some good alternatives for what is
happening at 4th and Railroad.

Mr. Wilkinson said if they want to engineer the entire corridor before constructing
anything, then nothing will be done this year.

Ms. Blohm said she wasn’t going to that extreme, because the entire corridor doesn’t
have that particular issue.

Mr. Thibault explained that they didn’t have solutions for that problem yet, because
they haven’t redesigned that sidewalk yet. There are options; we will come up with a
reasonable solution when that section is designed.

Chairman Karr thought they could look at doing a sidewalk improvement program
with that district at the same time. That way it would save money and time for the
contractor that comes in to do the block ends.

Ms. Blohm said that was entirely different project. She wanted to know, from Mr.
Thibault’s perspective, what they should be doing there.

Mr. Wilkinson thought they could have confidence if Mr. Thibault says they can
resolve the problem. This same issue has been resolved in other areas of the
downtown.



January 23, 2020 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 9

Chairman Karr asked Ms. Blohm if she would want to include on the next agenda to
look at the sidewalk as being part of that project.

Mr. Wilkinson explained that that whole sidewalk, along with some other areas of
sidewalk, is another project. There is a big hurdle on that proposed project, because
we are going to create a Special Improvement District. To do that we have to have
66% of property owners to agree to help fund it. If they don’t agree, we will have to
step back and rethink it. All of the engineering and design work for that project will
be done at that time.

Mr. Thibault continued with the presentation of the block end design. He explained
that he did his best to line up the ADA Ramps with where the 30% Plans show them.
Some do line up with existing crosswalks and some do not. They are all intended to
line up with the future sidewalks on the other sides of the streets. He then moved on
to the 5th Street design. We can’t do much. NDOT just did all new curb, gutter, and
sidewalks and we are not changing any of that. We also won’t be changing the streets.
We will be losing the parallel parking stalls in the corridor. Those will be replaced
with some lawn and smaller trees. The 6th Street design will be very similar to 4th

Street. There will be areas for future art installations and benches.

Ms. Blohm asked if any thought had gone into where public transportation may make
a stop.

Mr. Dalling said they stopped at 6th Street in the street.

Ms. Blohm asked if the street width was going to remain the same, so it could
accommodate for public transportation stops.

Mr. Thibault explained that they would be losing on street parallel parking and the
parallel parking in the corridor. He wondered if they wanted to look at a pull out for a
bus. He thought if they did that they would also be required to put in loading ramps.

Mr. Wilkinson said that is a whole other issue. He would have to ask the public
transportation what they do now if the parallel parking is utilized. Mr. Wilkinson
mentioned that staff has looked into actual bus stops, and the cost to develop those
and meet federal requirements is high.

Ms. Blohm thought they had to look at that.

Chairman Karr disagreed. He said they would be looking at an extra $25,000 to
$50,000 for a company that is sponsored by the County. They need to adapt.

Ms. Blohm thought they needed to plan for that, not that they needed to put them in.

Mr. Thibault thought if there were cars parked there, they are probably stopping in the
travel lane and they would continue to do so.



January 23, 2020 Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 9

Mr. Wilkinson thought they operated like the School District. The School District
drives down a street, puts on their flashers, and they stop in the street to load and
unload. We went through this a couple years ago. Staff had some discussion with
them about developing bus stops in certain areas. It was pretty apparent that there was
no funding available to pursue that. Get My Ride is flexible. You can call them and
have them pick you up anywhere, so there is really no way to accommodate for that.

There was further discussion regarding accommodations for public transportation
stops. It was determined that public transportation could park in the corridor for stops.

Mr. Thibault continued with the presentation. He explained that staff was still
working through the irrigation. He mentioned that they might hire a consultant to help
design that in detail. As of now, they thought they could pull wires from some
existing irrigation boxes for the east side.  There is not a great source of electricity on
the west side of 5th Street, so staff is looking at some battery-operated timers.

There was discussion regarding electricity in the corridor for events and lighting. It
was determined that electricity and lighting would be addressed on the west end of
the corridor when the parking areas were redone.

There was some further discussion regarding the future Special Improvement District.
It was determined that the process would be started once the Block End Project is
nearing completion.

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Redevelopment Advisory Council reserves
the right to combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the
agenda, or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Jon Karr, Chairman Lina Blohm, Secretary



Agenda Item I.A.

City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action regarding the continuation of the
Redevelopment Recognition Program and possible modifications to the program,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date: July 22, 2021

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

4. Time Required: 5 minutes

5. Background Information: The RAC defined the details of the Recognition Program at
their October 25, 2018 meeting. The RDA and RAC had a joint meeting May 21,
2019 to recognize the 2019 recipients of the Recognition Program.  It was never
determined if this program would be an annual or biennial program. The RAC at
their January 23, 2020 meeting made a motion to bring back the recognition
program for reconsideration and possible modifications and to have the program
every five years.

6. Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: Redevelopment Fund

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Recognition Program

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the RAC

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, Redevelopment Manager/City Planner

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Agency Action:

13. Agenda Distribution:



RAC Recognition Program

WHAT: A recognition program acknowledging the simplest to the largest improvements, awarded to
property owners, tenants, business owners, or developers for their investment in the Redevelopment
Area.

WHEN: Annually at the first RAC meeting of each year, 1-10 recipients will be recognized during
“Presentations” on the agenda.

WHO IS ELIGIBLE: Property owners, tenants, business owners, or developers who have qualified
improvements within the Redevelopment Area.

ELIGIBLE IMPROVEMENTS: Any improvement that is a monetary investment in the Redevelopment Area
that meets the objectives listed in the Redevelopment Plan.

NOMINATIONS: All nominations would go to the City Planner/Redevelopment Manager 4 weeks prior to
the meeting. The Redevelopment Manager will sort the nominations and present them to the RAC
members for a final vote. City Staff, members of the RAC, RDA or public are eligible to make nominations.

REDEVELOPMENT MANGERS ROLE: The Redevelopment Manager will send out an invitation to attend the
RAC meeting to the award recipients.  The Redevelopment Manager will work with the RAC Champion to
order the awards or other selected gifts of appreciation.

LIMITED NUMBER OF AWARDS RECEIVED: Each parcel, tenant, business owner can receive up to 1 award
per year.

COST FOR AWARDS: A maximum amount of $1,000 per year for all awards.

PHOTOS: Photos will be provided at the RAC meeting to show the before and after for each award unless
they are not available.

RECOGNITION: City of Elko website will recognize the annual award recipients as well as Elko Daily Free
Press will be notified.



Agenda Item # I.B.

City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to the Redevelopment
Agency regarding the planter areas within the corridor from 3rd Street to 7th Street,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

2. Meeting Date: July 22, 2021

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

4. Time Required: 20 minutes

5. Background Information: Approximately 1996-97, the downtown corridor planters
were adopted by existing businesses or families in memory of loved ones. This was a
project not associated with the City of Elko. The adoption program was intended for
the planters to be maintained by those individuals or businesses.  Many of the
businesses are no longer in business and many of the planters are in great disrepair.
The DBA would like to partner with the Redevelopment Agency on the planter
project.

6. Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: Redevelopment Agency

7. Business Impact Statement: Required / Not Required

8. Supplemental Agenda Information Staff Memo

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the RAC

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Agency Action:

13. Agenda Distribution:



CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department

1751 College Avenue · Elko, Nevada 89801 · (775) 777-7160 · Fax (775) 777-7119

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us

Memorandum
To: Redevelopment Advisory Council
From: Cathy Laughlin –City Planner
Date: July 13, 2021

These two planters shown in this photo are in front of Western Folklife Center. They are planted well with
mature shrubs and flowers and maintained by the Western Folklife Center. Irrigation appears to be working
fine. Although there is very little bark left in the planter, they are the two nicest planters in the corridor.



This planter is right next to the Western Folklife planter and this is what many of the planters in the corridor
look like. No plants and very little bark left.



300 Block

1. Jack and Marci Simon
2. Sarah Sweetwater
3. Thunderbird
4. Unknown
5. Stockmen’s
6. Commercial Hotel
7. McMullen McPhee
8. Elko Energy Center / Elko Cabinet Co.
9. First American Title / Cedar Creek
10. Laverne Hunt



400 Block

1. Stewart Title
2. Soroptomist of Elko
3. Vogue
4. Unknown
5. Unknown
6. Unknown
7. Great Basin Bank
8. Blohm Jewelers / Wilson & Barrows
9. John McCrony
10. US Bank



500 Block

1. Betty Love
2. Sierra Pacific Power Co.
3. Ben and Connie Lesbo
4. Jan Ev’s and Domino’s Pizza
5. Pete Scheidemann
6. Anacabes Elko General Merchandise and Howard & Mary Schmidt
7. Alan Campbell
8. Diane Meeks Mackie
9. Western Folklife Center
10. Wilda Birdsell Grock



600 Block

1. Stan Driskell
2. Jess Goicoechea
3. Lornell Bowler
4. Machi’s and Lillian’s Gift House
5. Barrick
6. Soroptimist of Elko
7. First Interstate Bank and Elko County Board of Realtors
8. Lee and Mary Chapman and Canyon Construction
9. Charlie Paul
10. Imogene Paul



Downtown Corridor Flower Bed Proposal

Regarding:
The 40 flower beds in the corridor, from 3rd street to 7th street, in between Railroad and
Commercial

The Problem:
● The beds have not been maintained and must now be re-landscaped
● The CIty does not have the manpower to accomplish this
● The City also struggles to maintain the beds
● Much of the drip system is not working

Proposed Solution:
● Elko Downtown Business Association will coordinate with local businesses and the

general public to schedule a volunteer day to re-landscape the beds with shrubs,
flowers, and bark

○ Work will include some removal of dirt from each bed so the bark can be
maintained, landscaping fabric installation, as well as a general repair of the drip
systems that are in place

● Elko DBA will continue to be a part of the maintenance program through one scheduled
cleanup day per year (likely during the yearly “Take Pride” event)

● Elko DBA will work to encourage local businesses near the planters to take time to pull
weeds and do general cleanup

● Elko DBA will seek out donations from local landscaping businesses for some materials
● Elko DBA will petition its membership for cash donations in an attempt to increase the

quality and reach of this project, although our membership is still feeling the effects of
the pandemic on their operations and cash flow.

Requests to the City of Elko:
● Elko DBA requests help from the City to remove excess dirt from the corridor once it has

been removed from the beds
● Elko DBA requests that the City contribute $40,000 ($1,000/Bed) for the initial

re-landscaping.
○ These funds will be used to purchase all landscaping materials as well as rent

necessary equipment for volunteers to accomplish the task, as well as to contract
any work not finished.



1

Cathy Laughlin

From: David Zornes <dzornes@northernstarcasinos.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 14, 2021 10:39 AM
To: Cathy Laughlin
Subject: RE: Planters   4 out of 10

Hi Cathy, 
 
We bought the weed barrier from Grainger and it averaged $105.94 per planter. 
 
We bought the bark from Walmart and we first got it at regular price and then bought a lot on sale at $1 per 
bag.  Looking at non-sale price we averaged about $50 per planter for the bark. 
 
So right around $150 per planter for weed screen and bark. 
 
While I’m talking to you.  They City bought the new LED Bulbs for the corridor lights.  Do you know for sure if it was the 
biggest possible light that would fit in those fixtures? 
 
 
 
David R. Zornes 
Chief Executive Officer 
Nevada Casino Holdings, LLC 
Stockmen’s Hotel & Casino, LLC 
Commercial Casino, LLC 
Scoreboard Sports Lounge and Casino, LLC 
Model T Casino Resort, LLC 
El Capitan Lodge Casino, LLC 
340 Commercial Street 
Elko, NV 89801 
Office: 775.777.0789  
Mobile: 775.389.1339 
dzornes@northernstarcasinos.com 
 

From: Cathy Laughlin [mailto:claughlin@elkocitynv.gov]  
Sent: Wednesday, July 14, 2021 8:09 AM 
To: David Zornes <dzornes@northernstarcasinos.com> 
Subject: RE: Planters 4 out of 10 
 
** External **  

Can you tell me what you spent in bark for the 4 planters, we are trying to use that figure to come up with a budget to 
do all of them. 
These look great and I will be in touch later today with more information regarding the project. 
 
Cathy Laughlin  
City Planner 
 
(775)777-7160 ph 
(775)777-7219 fax 
claughlin@elkocitynv.gov 
 
City of Elko 



2

1751 College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 
 

From: David Zornes <dzornes@northernstarcasinos.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, July 13, 2021 2:56 PM 
To: Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov> 
Subject: FW: Planters 4 out of 10 
 
Cathy, 
We took out dirt and the old dead plants in 4 out of 5 planters across from Stockmen’s.  We are waiting for Joe to send 
some guys to fix the drip irrigation in the 5th planter. 
 
Driving to work today I turned on 4th Street and then Railroad Street and realized that the 5 planters on the Commercial 
side need to be cleaned out also  People don’t realize we don’t own that parking lot. 
 
Anyway, today I was on the call with Garett about what the DBA can do to help the City.  I understand how  hard it is to 
hire the right people right now.  Turnover is costing us a fortune.  We’ll get those other 6 planters cleaned out but after 
talking to Garett do you think there is any chance the City might buy the bark?  If the DBA makes a deal with the City I 
will be glad to add plants to these areas.  Garett said he had about $300 left that could be used for us now out of DBA 
funds. 
 
Thanks Cathy, I hope you are recovering from your busy weekend! 
 
David R. Zornes 
Chief Executive Officer 
Nevada Casino Holdings, LLC 
Stockmen’s Hotel & Casino, LLC 
Commercial Casino, LLC 
Scoreboard Sports Lounge and Casino, LLC 
Model T Casino Resort, LLC 
El Capitan Lodge Casino, LLC 
340 Commercial Street 
Elko, NV 89801 
Office: 775.777.0789  
Mobile: 775.389.1339 
dzornes@northernstarcasinos.com 
 

From: David Zornes  
Sent: Tuesday, July 13, 2021 2:45 PM 
To: David Zornes <dzornes@northernstarcasinos.com> 
Subject: Planters  
 



3

  

 



4

  

 



5

  

 



6

  

 
 D

avid R
. Z

ornes 
C

E
O

 
N

evada C
asino H

oldings, L
L

C
 

 S
ent from

 m
y iPhone 

C
O

N
F

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

IT
Y

 N
O

T
IC

E
: T

his m
essage m

ay contain inform
ation that is confidential and/or legally 

privileged. A
ny use, disclosure, distribution, or duplication by anyone other than an intended recipient is 

prohibited. If you received this m
essage in error, please notify the sender and perm

anently delete the original 
m

essage, any copies and attachm
ents from

 your com
puter system

.  
C

O
N

F
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
IT

Y
 N

O
T

IC
E

: T
his m

essage m
ay contain inform

ation that is confidential and/or legally 
privileged. A

ny use, disclosure, distribution, or duplication by anyone other than an intended recipient is 
prohibited. If you received this m

essage in error, please notify the sender and perm
anently delete the original 

m
essage, any copies and attachm

ents from
 your com

puter system
.  



Agenda Item # I.C.

City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council
Agenda Action Sheet

1. Title: Review, consideration and possible action to hold a special election to elect
officers or maintain current positions until January 2022 election, FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

2. Meeting Date: July 22, 2021

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

4. Time Required: 15 minutes

5. Background Information: RAC Bylaws Article III, Section 1 states: The RAC shall
elect a chairperson, a vice-chairperson, and a secretary from its members in
January of each year. There is no minimum or maximum on the number of times a
member may serve in one of the elected offices. RAC did not meet in January 2021
due to Covid advisory meeting restrictions and therefore the election was not held.
There is one additional meeting in 2021 prior to the election of officers in January
2022.

6. Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: By-laws

9. Recommended Motion: Maintain current elected officers and hold the election of
officers in January 2022.

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

12. Agency Action:

13. Agenda Distribution:



Page 1 of 4 ADOPTED FEBRUARY 14, 2017

City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council (RAC)
Bylaws

(First Amended and Restated)

ARTICLE I ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE; RECITALS

Section 1 The City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council (RAC) was established by the City of
Elko Redevelopment Agency (RDA) on December 11, 2012.

Section 2 Whereas, on or about February 12, 2013, the RDA adopted the first set of Bylaws for the
RAC; and

Whereas, the RDA has determined to amend and restate the Bylaws; and

Whereas the redevelopment and revitalization of the City’s downtown is an integral
component of the Redevelopment Plan; and

Whereas the RDA is committed to promoting the downtown area as a principal focal point
for Elko community life, and making it an attractive, safe and economically sound city
center with shopping, entertainment, cultural and recreational opportunities; and

Whereas the RDA recognizes and values community collaboration while maintaining the
distinctive character of Elko as a pioneering and enterprising city; and

Whereas the RDA wishes to seek advice from a diverse yet representative advisory
committee to advise it with respect to implementing the RDA Plan or any plans
subsequently adopted for the implementation of the RDA Plan, to propose Plan
amendments, to assist with marketing and economics as requested by the
Redevelopment Agency, to suggest projects and priorities for possible expenditures
during the budget process, to explore grants or other external funding sources, to
develop Design Guidelines for possible use by the Redevelopment Agency, and to advise
the Redevelopment Agency about ways to attract new business.

Based upon the foregoing recitals, the RDA hereby finds and directs that the RAC shall
be subject to the following bylaws commencing on the date of adoption by the RDA:

ARTICLE II MEMBERSHIP, APPOINTMENT TERMS

Section1 The RDA shall appoint five (5) members to the RAC board.  The RAC board members
shall satisfy the following criteria or have the following affiliations or associations, and
shall serve without compensation: (1) a member of the RDA, (2) the president or
designee of the Downtown Business Association, (3) the chairman or designee of the
Arts and Culture Advisory Board, (4) one member who resides within the City of Elko
incorporated boundary, and (5) one stakeholder from the redevelopment area. In the
event that one of these members is not able to maintain his or her position, the RDA may
select other representatives to serve. Membership shall also include four (4) ex-officio
nonvoting members, being representatives of the Elko County School District, Great
Basin College, Elko County, and the Elko Convention and Visitors Authority.

Section 2 The members of the RAC shall be appointed by the RDA annually in July; provided, in
the event of a vacancy, the RDA may appoint an interim member for a term up to and
including the next July 31.  There shall be no limit on the number of reappointments of
the members.

Section 3 Minimum Qualifications for appointment to the RAC include:



Page 2 of 4 ADOPTED FEBRUARY 14, 2017

a. Interest in the City of Elko community.
b. Ability to work cooperatively with individuals, groups, community agencies and

organizations.
c. Willingness to meet and conduct business under the Nevada Open Meeting Law.

Section 4 Any RAC board member (excluding ex officio members) who accrues more than three (3)
consecutive unexcused absences, or fails to attend more than seventy-five percent (75%)
of the regularly scheduled meetings within a calendar year, shall be considered to have
resigned and that person’s membership shall thereupon automatically terminate. The
foregoing sentence shall not apply to excused absences. Excused absences are defined
as absences due to illness of a member or a person in a member’s family, employment-
related activities, or other instances as approved by the Chairperson on a case-by-case
basis.  Notification of absences is to be made to the Secretary of the RAC.

Section 5 Any board member may be removed or suspended by the RDA for good cause, as
determined by the RDA.

ARTICLE III OFFICES, DUTIES AND APPOINTMENT OF OFFICERS

Section 1 There is no minimum or maximum on the number of times a member may serve in one of
the elected offices. In the event of a vacancy in an elected office, a special election may
be held at any time during the year to fill the vacancy.

Section 2 The offices and duties of the officers shall be as follows:

a. Chairperson: To preside over meetings of the RAC and to ensure that actions are
properly taken, to sign official documents and correspondence on behalf of the
RAC, to assist City Staff in preparing agendas, and to represent the RAC at City
Council and RDA meetings, and other official functions.

b. Vice-Chairperson: To assume the duties of the Chairperson in the absence of the
Chairperson, and to assist with publicity efforts as needed.

c. Secretary: To sign or attest official documents of the RAC, to keep minutes of the
meetings, and to review any record-keeping functions of the RAC.

ARTICLE IV RESPONSIBILITIES, POWERS, AND DUTIES

Section 1 The responsibilities, powers and duties of the RAC shall include, but not-be-limited to, the
following:

a. Hold meetings in accordance with the Open Meeting Law (Nevada Revised
Statutes (NRS) Chapter 241) to promote the exchange of information and
otherwise fulfill the purposes stated in these Bylaws.

b. Obtain public input.
c. Assist in the development of Design Guidelines and any restrictions or controls

upon the request of and subject to the approval by the Elko Redevelopment
Agency.

d. Recommend proposed amendments to the City of Elko Redevelopment Plan.
e. Advise the RDA on implementation of the RDA Master Plan and any

implementation documents.
f. Monitor and evaluate progress in carrying out the vision for the purpose of

advising the RDA.
g. To the extent delegated by the RDA, oversee and coordinate among other

advisory bodies, estimate the overall needs for resources to accomplish the
various projects, and provide direction in the allocation of resources among these
projects.



Page 3 of 4 ADOPTED FEBRUARY 14, 2017

h. Sort among competing priorities and conflicting activities within the scope of
RAC’s area of responsibility.

i. Communicate the information regarding implementation of the Redevelopment
Plan and implementation documents to the community, stakeholders, and
interested organizations.

j. Give recognition to people and groups as they accomplish action items and
project implementation activities.

k. As requested by the RDA, help with the identification, and recruitment, of Project
Champions, as that term is defined in the Redevelopment Plan or associated
implementation documents.

Pursuant to NRS Chapter 279, the RDA is responsible for overseeing, managing, and coordinating
redevelopment and revitalization projects within the redevelopment area pursuant to the Redevelopment
Plan.  The RDA will, in its discretion and within the scope of its statutory authority (1) be the authority for
implementation of the RDA Plan, (2) approve project budgets, (3) resolve conflicting priorities, (4) secure
funding for specific projects,  and (5) resolve project challenges presented by the City of Elko’s regulatory
structure. These duties and all other duties given to the RDA by statute may not be delegated to the
RAC.

ARTICLE V MEETINGS, RECORDS, QUORUMS, AND VOTING

Section 1 The RAC shall meet quarterly or as needed as determined by the Chairperson of the
RAC.

Section 2 Special meetings of the RAC may be called as directed by:

a. By the Chairperson of the RAC;
b. By a majority vote of a quorum at a meeting of the RAC;
c. By request of a majority of the members of the RAC;
d. By the RDA; or
d. By the City Planner or his/her designee.

Section 3 All meetings shall be properly noticed, posted and conducted according to the Open
Meeting Law, NRS Chapter 241.

Section 4 Three (3) members of the RAC shall constitute a quorum. No action may be taken
without at least a quorum. The quorum shall not be reduced by abstentions or recusals.
A majority vote of the members of the RAC who are in attendance and able to vote shall
be necessary for official action.

Section 5 The RAC shall comply with these Bylaws for all business of the RAC.

Section 6 The RAC shall keep a written record of all meetings.

Section 7 Only such business specified in the published agenda for the meeting shall be transacted
at a meeting of the RAC.

ARTICLE VI FILING WITH THE CITY CLERK

Section 1 The executed original of these Bylaws must be filed with the City Clerk within ten (10)
days of adoption by the RDA.

Section 2 Originals of the agenda, agenda backup items, and certificate of posting are to be filed
with the office of the City Clerk at the time of the posting of the agenda.



Page 4 of 4 ADOPTED FEBRUARY 14, 2017

Section 3 The executed original of the meeting minutes is to be filed with the office of the Elko City
Clerk within ten (10) calendar days of approval.

ARTICLE VII ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT

Section 1 These Bylaws shall become effective upon adoption by the RDA.

Section 2 An amendment to these Bylaws may be introduced and initiated by a majority vote of
either the RAC or the RDA. The proposed amendment shall be acted upon at the next
regular meeting of the RDA.

Section 3 The RAC is responsible for ensuring compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Pursuant
to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 241, the RAC must prepare, publish and follow an
agenda.  Any action items must be submitted to the City Planner or his/her designee at
least ten (10) calendar days prior to the official meeting date.  Appropriate back up
material must be submitted with the item.

Section 4 Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein, the RDA may, in its discretion,
dissolve and terminate the RAC, or restrict or amend these Bylaws and the duties and
responsibilities of the RAC to the extent permitted by the Redevelopment Plan and the
Nevada Revised Statutes.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

By:

Its:

DATED: , 2016.

ATTEST:



Approved
Budget

As  of
7/13/2021

Approved
Budget

As of
7/13/2021

Beginning Fund Balance $1,358,208 Legal $20,000 $629
Budget to beginning fund balance dif. -$58,339 Public Improvements
Property Tax Revenues (anticipated) $393,888 $346,029 Misc. items $1,000 $247
Interest Revenues (anticipated) $7,000 $5,150 Storefront Program (pledged 2017) $25,000 $25,000
Transfer in from General Fund Storefront Program (pledged 2018) $25,000

Storefront Program (pledged 2019) $16,918 $11,150
Storefront Program (pledged 2020) $98,448

Total Revenues $1,700,757 $351,179 Storefront Program (pledged 2021) $100,000
Public-Private Partnerships $75,000
RAC Recognition Program $1,000

Balance to date $1,050,223 400 Block Alley power project ?
Block End Project $600,000 $563,800
Stockmen's Parking lot $99,999
Balance towards savings $638,292
Revolving Fund $100

Total Expenses $1,700,757 $600,825

Redevelopment Agency 2020/2021 Budget
July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

Revenues Expenditures

M:\Planning\Redevelopment\RDA Budgets\RDA Budget 2020-2021
7/15/2021



Approved
Budget

As  of
7/13/2021

Approved
Budget

As of
7/13/2021

Beginning Fund Balance $969,625 Legal $20,000
Budget to beginning fund balance dif. Public Improvements
Property Tax Revenues (anticipated) $310,000 Misc. items $1,000
Interest Revenues (anticipated) $6,000 Storefront Program (pledged 2018) $25,000
Transfer in from General Fund Storefront Program (pledged 2020) $98,448

Storefront Program (pledged 2021) $100,000
Storefront Program (pledged 2022) $50,000

Total Revenues $1,285,625 $0 Public-Private Partnerships $75,000
RAC Recognition Program $1,000
400 Block Alley power project ?

Balance to date $969,625 Block End Project $46,000
Stockmen's Parking lot $99,999
Balance towards savings $769,078
Revolving Fund $100

Total Expenses $1,285,625 $0

Redevelopment Agency 2021/2022 Budget
July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022

Revenues Expenditures

M:\Planning\Redevelopment\RDA Budgets\RDA Budget 2021-2022
7/15/2021



Participant 2017 $ Approved 2017 $ Paid 2018 $ Approved 2018 $ Paid 2019 $ Approved 2019 $ Paid 2020 $ Approved 2020 $ Paid 2021 $ Approved 2021 $ Paid
Susan Wright $5,775.56 $5,775.56
Gerber Professional Bldg. $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Jeff Dalling $25,000.00 $25,000.00
Western Folklife Center $20,399.93 $20,399.93
Pat Laughlin Family Trust $5,105.00 $5,105.00
Patray Assets LLP $25,000.00 $25,000.00
OC Restaurants, LLC $25,000.00 $0.00
Susan Wright $16,997.50 $15,050.00
Catherine Wines $7,445.64 $3,624.56
Jason & Gina Land $25,000.00 $25,000.00
Lockie & MacFarlan $3,057.18 $3,057.18
Braemar Construction $25,000.00
Lori Ayala, Rubies Bar $25,000.00
Clay Gremel $23,448.00
Living Stones Church $25,000.00
Scott Ygoa $25,000.00
Lostra Enterprises, LLC $25,000.00
Tedesco Foundation $25,000.00
Dr. Todd and Marin Wendell $25,000.00

$66,175.49 $66,175.49 $55,105.00 $30,105.00 $49,443.14 $43,674.56 $101,505.18 $3,057.18 $0.00 $0.00
2017 Complete 2019 complete

$372,228.81
$143,012.23

Total Approved to date
Total Paid to date

RDA Storefront Improvement Grant


















































	07-22-21 RAC Agenda.pdf (p.1-3)
	01-23-20 - DRAFT Minutes.pdf (p.4-12)
	Item I.A. - New Business - Recognition Program.pdf (p.13-14)
	Item I.B. - New Business - Corridor Planter Project.pdf (p.15-28)
	Item I.C. - New Business -Election of officers.pdf (p.29-33)
	Reports - Budget.pdf (p.34-35)
	Budget Report 20-21.pdf (p.1)
	RDA Budget 2020-2021.xlsx.pdf (p.2)

	Reports - Storefront Improvement Program.pdf (p.36)
	Downtown Idea Exchange - June 2021.pdf (p.37-48)
	Downtown Idea Exchange - July 2021.pdf (p.49-60)

